CITY OF NEWBERG TRAFFIC SAFETY COMMISSION MINUTES MONDAY, October 23, 2023 7:00 PM

"Mission Statement: To give the citizens of Newberg a forum to voice traffic safety concerns, evaluate related issues, provide a liaison with the City and promote traffic safety within the community."

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER

Chair Woodruff called the meeting to order at 7:09 PM.

II. ROLL CALL

Members Present: Lesley Woodruff Neal Klein Jesse Cadd

Dan Kizer Mike McBride

Members Absent: Tony Roos, Michael Rossman, Greg Stiffler, Bret Adkins and Toby Linhart

Staff Present: Sarah Wilson, Assistant City Engineer

Paul Chiu, Principal Engineer

Did not have a quorum to make decisions. Chair decided to proceed with the meeting due to public comment, but it is made known that due to a lack of quorum, we would not be able to make decisions.

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The pledge of allegiance was performed.

IV. PUBLIC ATTENDANCE

Matthew Denley Aubrey Nichols Molly Olson Theresa Royce Eugene Royce

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Matthew Denley: Mr. Denley states his business is located at 100 S College, downtown Newberg. His office faces across the street from Chapters Book Store and he attended this meeting to talk about public safety and what he has observed over a period of time. He brought exhibits to present what he thinks is an unsafe crosswalk. Mr. Denley stated he has emails dating back to 2019 about this intersection and addressed his concerns to ODOT. He states ODOT has failed to address this unsafe situation and he felt it should be elevated to a City level.

What Mr. Denley has witnessed:

"On September 12th, a young woman, who appeared agile, almost got hit by a Dodge Ram Truck. More recently, a gentleman walking northbound towards chapter was having difficulty walking. The only reason why he did not get hit was the driver noticed at the last second there was a pedestrian there."

Mr. Denley states his idea for this intersection for the south bound traffic is "there needs to be a dedicated left turn signal. This gives the drivers and pedestrians the grace of time. This gives the drivers the ability to turn left and it keeps the pedestrians out of the crosswalk during the turning period.

Commissioner Neal Klein agrees with the testimony brought forth. One point in particular is the near

misses are not documented and don't become a statistic. Someone must be injured or killed in order for it to be noted or recorded. Commissioner Klein notes that ODOT works primarily on statistical data and unless that data exists, ODOT won't move forward with change requests. Commissioner Klein thanked the public members for presenting their concerns, but notes to the public member that ODOT rules that road, it will be a slow process for change.

Aubrey Nichols: Ms. Nichols states "with the downtown collation, she'd like to address the restraint of ODOT corridors running though the downtown area and presents the findings of the parking study recently completed and presented to Council in August 2023. There are 11 recommendations from the parking study. The Downtown collation surveyed the public to prioritize the recommendations. What was surprising was that we have more issues with safety instead of limited parking. From lighting improvements in the 2nd street lot and the pedestrian crossing issues.

Ms. Nichols asks if TSC is interested in the presentation of the findings of the NDC and the parking study in a formal matter in January at the next TSC meeting. Miss Nichols notes that there are multiple methods of addressing parking from lighting to working with ODOT. Ms. Nichols mentions the article in the Newberg Graphic that references the parking study. Miss Nichols asks for a team approach between NDC, TSC and the public to address ODOT.

Molly Olson: Ms. Olson states she lives on College Street off of Edwards Street. She stated she walks downtown a lot. She works with NDC and twice have nearly been taken out on the sidewalk next to Chapters from the southbound traffic. ODOT did a left hand turn lane on Main Street, and this is the Solution needed on College Street. Miss Olson states "the letter received back from ODOT in in response to Matthews's inquiry was ODOT stating that they wish they could pursue a fix, but don't have the funds". Miss Olson suggests that this issue be escalated to council so that this can be addressed prior to someone being injured or killed. Ms. Olson stated that ODOT may get these kinds of emails all the time and bringing a larger party to talk about the issue may be what we need to get this issue the attention it needs.

Chair Woodruff asked how the left hand turn lane at Main Street and 99 got in installed. Mr. Paul Chiu, Senior Engineer answered that he did not know why specifically that signal light got put in, but he will find out. Mr. Chiu notes that this intersection feels much safer than at College Street and 99W.

Mr. Mike McBride says that he can bring this up at the next council meeting. Ms. Olson can also bring this up at the next council meeting. Mr. McBride stated that pressure needs to be put on our representatives. We want to let them know that this is serious and want to know why the cost increase is stated to be so high. Commissioner Klein suggests that we could ask staff to do another traffic study.

Theresa Royce: Mrs. Royce stated they live off of East 7th in the downtown area. Back in May her husband was knocked off his bike and broke his elbow. In this area there are no stop signs. Once you cross River, there are no stop signs on this side of town. It is difficult to navigate non-controlled intersections. Two weeks ago, someone on her cell phone blew through the intersection. Mrs. Royce questions; "If we don't have this kind of safe control, how can we ride our bikes and let our children play? My husband was on 8th and Chehalem. It was a nice day and he was hit as he crossed the intersection. I find it perplexing that we don't have this standard safety mechanism. I see people blowing through intersections. I wonder why I don't see more children outside playing and I believe it is because it is unsafe in those neighborhoods."

Chair Woodruff talks about how the City tries to balance the number of stop signs and applying them appropriately. Chair Woodruff states it is a possibility that the City could look into the number of cars

Traveling through the neighborhood.

Mr. Eugene Royce points out that all the stop signs are on the perimeter but not within the heart of the Neighborhood. Mr. Royce claimed he's never lived in a neighborhood that has not had at least one or two safety precautions to let someone know that they need to slow down. Drivers are not driving the appropriate neighborhood speed and people can't walk around safely in the neighborhood.

Chair Woodruff asks if we can have the speed trailer out at Chehalem and 7th Street, Ms. Wilson, Staff Liaison replied "yes".

Commissioner Jesse Cadd asked Mr. and Mrs. Royce if they were aware that there is a stop sign warrant and petition online. Mr. Royce stated he was not aware. Commissioner Cadd provides an example where this was a successful practice.

V. CONSENT CALENDAR

Chair Woodruff approved TSC Meeting Minutes for April 10, 2023 and July 24, 2023.

VI. STAFF REPORTS & GENERAL INFORMATION

Staff Liaison/Assistant City Engineer Wilson and Engineering Administrative Assistant, Zen Buganan were unable to complete the public meeting hybrid room as the equipment was not working due to a power outage that the City experienced the night before.

As the typical recording for the meeting minutes was not occorring at this meeting, Staff Laiason is taking notes by hand.

VII. OLD BUSINESS

A. RLR (Red Light Running)

Senior Engineer, Paul Chiu stated; "Looking at the crash data the ODOT has provided, we need to look at a 5-year block of data that would qualify intersections for the RLR Program. We looked at as many intersections as we could, but ony two qualified for the cameras according to ODOT. Main Street and 99, and HWY 219 and Villa Road on 99W." Mr. Chiu states "the cameras on 99 and Main will have speed enforcement in addition to the RLR. The city will continue to work on getting speed enforcement on both cameras."

Mr. Chiu stated the city has hired Kittelson and Associates to do the application from the City to ODOT. This application was able to get the approval.

The City received three proposals from vendors. The vendors will install and supply the cameras and are paid at a negotiated flat rate or percent per incident caught and ticketed. The City attorney is currently reviewing the contracts with the chosen vendor. This is currently under review and negotiation. There are about three items remaining to be negotiated. Once this is finished, there will be a contract signed and Mr. Chiu will be the point person to work with this vendor. Mr. Chiu states "we will need to continue to work with ODOT as these cameras are installed. We will also need notification signs as you enter the city.

Mr. Chiu estimates that we could see the cameras in 6-12 months. "Once these first two are in place, we will continue to look at intersections where we can apply this technology. One contingency is that ODOT requires an intersection that has 5 years of crash data. So if an intersection is new, or if it has been changed, then the 5 year interval needs to start over.

Commissioner Cadd asks "for the intersections where we could do RLR enforcement but not speed enforcement. Do these cameras also measure speed? Can we use them to get statistics on speed with the camera installed? Mr. Chiu says that this may be a possibility because these are very sophisticated machines. He will as the vendor about its capabilities.

Mr. Chiu says that at Villa Road, we only have RLR enforcement and not speed enforcement. At Main and 99, we have both and states that the State Legislature has passed a statute that the City can place their own RLR at their own intersections without ODOT approval. The City Manager is keeping a close eye on this opportunity.

B. Pavement Presevation Projects

Ms. Wilson discusses plans for the Pavement Preservation Projects in the future. Possibility of changing the way that the projects are scheduled to get more money per project as costs rise and that the Engineering Division has a coring machine to aid in the application of remediation methods.

C. River Street

Ms. Wilson states Vittoria Way to Gemini Street area to be done when there is water funds or possibly prior to water funds. Afterwards, Deborah Street and Fulton are next. PW Maintenance says that Deborah Street is a much larger problem than Fulton for water leaks and maintenance.

MOTION: N/A

VIII. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS

Commissioner Cadd wishes to add items to the TSC list of Potential Next Steps and brings up 20 is plenty as an incitive that had been talked about.

For TSC list of potential next steps, Chair Woodruff reminds the staff that the council should also be willing to take on these pieces of work. Chair Woodruff hopes that in January, the TSC will continue to look at this list. Chair Woodruff promotes having someone on the TSC being a part of the development of the next Transportation Master Plan and also promotes the traffic calming guidelines. Having first a presentation about what traffic calming is and what guidelines we can work with and then have a subcommittee to discuss how they are being implemented in the city and in new subdivisions.

Commissioner Neal Klein asks Mr. Chiu if he still has the plan that was created for a very similar issue to the one brought up by Liaison Wilson for putting traffic calming into new developments. Commissioner Klein says that this has been the same issues and things we have identified for the last 15 years, and he challenges the committee and the council to be proactive and implement change for future infrastructure.

Mr. Chiu provides comment saying that he agrees that it is best to do thing right the first time and it would be best if the developer could build these solutions into their developments.

City staff to present about traffic calming, code changes and working with the Planning Commission.

Chair Woodruff adds to the list - a Planning Commission liaison from the TSC or a meeting with the Planning Commission on a regular basis.

Commissioner Klein states that in the past experiences that dual commission, the Planning Commission and TSC operate in different restrictive law practices and that planning commission is also staffed differently. We should ask the planning commission if we could make a subcommittee between the two that meets on a continuing basis. Maybe their Chair and Vice Chair from each committee so we can guarantee continuity over tasks through turnover and committees.

Chair Woodruff would like to ask staff what the feasibility is meeting every other month. Liaison Wilson stated that if we can find availability in the meeting room, then we can meet as they wish. It may not be on a Monday, but we can change the day if needed.

Chair Woodruff announces that she will not be doing the TSC as Chair or as a committee member and this meeting is her last TSC Meeting.

IX. REFERENCE INFORMATION/TRAFFIC SAFETY INFORMATION

X. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 8:45 p.m.

Approved by the Newberg Traffic Safety Commission on this 8th day of January, 2024.

Minutes Recorder

Lesley Woodruff
Traffic Safety Commission Chair